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From: Erik Downing <E.Downing@SVCA.ON.CA> 
Sent: Friday, December 15, 2023 2:19 PM
To: Erik Downing <E.Downing@SVCA.ON.CA>
Subject: Update on 2024 Conservation Authority Fees and Collaborative Efforts
 
Dear Watershed Municipalities, Councils, and CAOs,
 
I hope this email finds you all well.  I am reaching out to inform you of a significant
directive from the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry affecting our
conservation authority fees for 2024. This directive extends the 2023 Environmental
Planning and Regulations fee structure into 2024, impacting our financial planning and
operations.
 
Attached is SVCA’s letter, providing our perspective and response, and the Ministry’s
communication. Please contact me for any questions or clarifications.
 
Wishing you a happy and peaceful holiday season.
 
Sincerely,
 
Erik Downing
General Manager/ Secretary-Treasurer (Acting)
519-364-1255 Ext. 241
e.downing@svca.on.ca

 
 

PRIVACY DISCLAIMER: This e-mail (including any attachments) may contain confidential, proprietary,
and privileged information and unauthorized disclosure or use is prohibited. If you received this e-mail in
error, please notify the sender and delete this e-mail from your system. SAUGEEN VALLEY
CONSERVATION AUTHORITY. Thank You!
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December 15th, 2023 
 
To All Watershed Municipalities, Councils, and CAOs, 
 
I am writing to you as the Acting General Manager/Secretary-Treasurer of the Saugeen Valley Conservation Authority 
(SVCA) regarding an important development concerning conservation authority fees for the year 2024. 
 
The Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry issued a new directive, as detailed in their letter dated December 13th. 
This directive, under the authority of subsection 21.3 (1) of the Conservation Authorities Act, extends the Minister's 
Direction issued on December 28, 2022, which mandated that conservation authorities should not alter fees related to 
planning, development, and permitting for the calendar year 2023. This extended Direction, effective from January 1, 
2024, to December 31, 2024, is now similarly applicable to the fees for the same programs and services as specified for 
the year 2023. (Ministry’s letter is attached). 
 
This directive presents a significant challenge for SVCA. The budget for 2024, approved earlier by the SVCA Board of 
Directors, had incorporated a portion of the recommended increases from our 2023 Fee Review. These increases were 
crucial and approved by the Board with the intention of moving SVCA towards achieving cost recovery through our 
Environmental Planning and Regulation (EPR) fees. The provincial directives that restrict SVCA’s ability to generate 
revenue, along with the continued decrease in direct funding from the province to Conservation Authorities, pose 
substantial challenges and have serious implications for our operational and financial stability.        
 
The unexpected extension of the 2023 fee structure into 2024 impacts our financial planning and operational 
capabilities. In response to this development, we find it necessary to revisit and potentially revise our 2024 budget. This 
revision aims to accommodate the constraints imposed by the new Direction while continuing to effectively manage our 
conservation responsibilities. 
 
We understand the implications this might have on our collaborative efforts and relationships with your respective 
councils and administrations. Therefore, the SVCA intends to propose new budgetary measures in the new year, which 
will be shared with you for review. 
 
I appreciate your understanding and cooperation in this matter. SVCA remains committed to working collaboratively 
with all watershed municipalities to ensure the sustainable management and conservation of our shared natural 
resources. 
 
Please feel free to reach out should you have any questions or require further clarification regarding this issue. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Erik Downing 
General Manager/Secretary-Treasurer (Acting) 
Saugeen Valley Conservation Authority 
e.downing@svca.on.ca  |  519-364-1255 ext. 241 



Ministry of Natural 
Resources and Forestry

Office of the Minister

99 Wellesley St W
Room 6630, Whitney Block 
Toronto ON  M7A 1W3     
Tel.:   416-314-2301

Ministère des Richesses 
naturelles et des Forêts

Bureau du ministre

99, rue Wellesley Ouest
Bureau 6630, Édifice Whitney 
Toronto ON  M7A 1W3     
Tél.:   416-314-2301

December 1 , 2023

TO:

SUBJECT: Extension of Minister’s Direction for Conservation Authorities Regarding
Fee Changes Associated with Planning, Development and Permitting 
Fees

I am writing with regards to conservation authority fees for the 2024 year. As you are
aware, a Minister’s Direction (“Direction”) was issued on December 28, 2022, directing 
conservation authorities not to change fees for programs and services associated with
planning, development and permitting for the 2023 calendar year. I have provided a
copy of this previous direction for your reference.

Pursuant to my authority under subsection 21.3 (1) of the Conservation Authorities Act,
I am issuing a new Direction that extends the previous Direction for the upcoming year
(attached to this letter as Attachment A). The Direction will be in effect from January 1, 
2024 to December 31, 2024 and applies to fees for the same programs and services 
specified in the Direction that was in effect for 2023.  

If you have any questions, please contact Jennifer Keyes, Director, Resources Planning 
and Development Policy Branch, at 705-761-4831 or jennifer.keyes@ontario.ca.

Sincerely,

The Honourable Graydon Smith
Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry 

c:
The Honourable Paul Calandra, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing 
The Honourable Andrea Khanjin, Minister of the Environment, Conservation and 
Parks
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Minister’s Direction Issued Pursuant to Section 21.3 of the Conservation Authorities 
Act

(this “Direction”)

WHEREAS section 21.2 of the Conservation Authorities Act permits a Conservation 
Authority to charge a fee for a program or service if the program or service is included in the 
Minister’s list of classes of programs and services in respect of which a Conservation 
Authority may charge a fee;

AND WHEREAS subsections 21.2 (6) and 21.2 (7) of the Conservation Authorities Act 
provide that a Conservation Authority shall adopt a written fee policy that includes a fee 
schedule listing the programs and services that it provides in respect of which it charges a 
fee, and the amount of the fee charged for each program or service or the manner in which 
the fee is determined (a “Fee Schedule”);

AND WHEREAS subsection 21.2 (10) of the Conservation Authorities Act provides that a 
Conservation Authority may make a change to the list of fees set out in the fee schedule or 
to the amount of any fee or the manner in which a fee is determined, provided the authority 
shall give notice of the proposed change to the public in a manner it considers appropriate;

AND WHEREAS section 21.3 of the Conservation Authorities Act provides the Minister with 
the authority to give a written direction to an authority directing it not to change the amount 
of any fee it charges under subsection 21.2 (10), in respect of a program or service set out 
in the list referred to in subsection 21.2 (2), for the period specified in the direction;

NOW THEREFORE pursuant to the authority of the Minister of Natural Resources and 
Forestry under section 21.3, the Conservation Authorities set out under Appendix “A” of this 
Direction (the “Conservation Authorities” or each, a “Conservation Authority”) are 
hereby directed as follows:

Fee Changes Prohibition

1. Commencing on the Effective Date and for the duration of the Term of this Direction, a
Conservation Authority is prohibited from making a change under subsection 21.2 (10)
of the Conservation Authorities Act to the amount of any fee or the manner in which a
fee is determined in its fee schedule if such a change would have the effect of changing
the fee amount for the programs and services described in paragraphs 2 and 3 of this
Direction.

Program and Service Fees Impacted 

2. This Direction applies to any fee set out in the Fee Schedule of a Conservation
Authority, including without limitation fees for any mandatory program or service
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(Category 1), municipal program or service (Category 2), or Conservation Authority 
recommended program or service (Category 3) related to reviewing and commenting on 
planning and development related proposals, applications, or land use planning policies,
or for Conservation Authority permitting.

3. For greater certainty, this Direction applies to any fees in respect of the following
programs or services provided under the Mandatory Programs and Services regulation
(O. Reg. 686/21):

a. Section 6: programs and services related to reviewing applications and proposals
under the Aggregate Resources Act, Drainage Act, Environmental Assessment
Act, and the Niagara Escarpment Planning and Development Act, for the purpose
of commenting on the risks related to natural hazards arising from the proposal,

b. Section 7: programs and services related to ensuring that decisions under the
Planning Act are consistent with the natural hazards policies in the policy
statements issued under section 3 of the Planning Act and are in conformance
with any natural hazard policies included in a provincial plan as defined in section
1 of that Act,

c. Section 8: programs and services related to Conservation Authority duties,
functions, and responsibilities to administer and enforce section 28 and its
regulations, section 28.0.1, and section 30.1 of the Conservation Authorities Act,

d. Paragraph 4 of subsection 13 (3): programs and services related to reviewing and
commenting on any proposal made under another Act for the purpose of
determining whether the proposal relates to a significant drinking water threat or
may impact any drinking water sources protected by a source protection plan,
and

e. Subparagraph 4 iv of section 15: programs and services related to reviewing and
commenting on proposals made under other Acts for the purpose of determining
the proposal’s impact on the Lake Simcoe Protection Plan and the Lake Simcoe
watershed.

Application 

4. This Direction, applies to all Conservation Authorities in Ontario, listed in Appendix “A” to
this Direction.

5. For greater certainty, this Direction also applies to the Conservation Authorities listed in
Appendix “A” to this Direction when such Conservation Authorities are meeting as a
source protection authority under the Clean Water Act, 2006.

Effective Date and Term

6. This Direction is effective from January 1, 2024 (the “Effective Date”).
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7. The term of this Direction is the period from the Effective Date to December 31, 2024
(the “Term”).

Amendments

8. This Direction may be amended in writing from time to time at the sole discretion of the
Minister.

HIS MAJESTY THE KING IN RIGHT OF ONTARIO
as represented by the 
Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry

The Honourable Graydon Smith 
Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry
December 1 , 2023
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APPENDIX A 

LIST OF CONSERVATION AUTHORITIES TO WHICH THE DIRECTION APPLIES 

Ausable Bayfield CA  
R.R. #3  
71108 Morrison Line  
Exeter ON N0M 1S5  
Brian Horner  
bhorner@abca.on.ca   

Cataraqui Region CA  
Box 160  
1641 Perth Road  
Glenburnie ON K0H 1S0  
Katrina Furlanetto  
kfurlanetto@crca.ca  

Catfish Creek CA  
R.R. #5  
8079 Springwater Road  
Aylmer ON N5H 2R4  
Dusty Underhill  
generalmanager@catfishcreek.ca   

Central Lake Ontario CA  
100 Whiting Avenue  
Oshawa ON L1H 3T3  
Chris Darling  
cdarling@cloca.com   

Credit Valley CA  
1255 Old Derry Rd  
Mississauga ON L5N 6R4  
Quentin Hanchard  
quentin.hancard@cvc.ca   

Crowe Valley CA  
Box 416  
70 Hughes Lane  
Marmora ON K0K 2M0  
Tim Pidduck  
tim.pidduck@crowevalley.com   

Essex Region CA  
Suite 311  
360 Fairview Ave West  
Essex ON N8M 1Y6   
Tim Byrne  
tbyrne@erca.org 
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Ganaraska Region CA  
Box 328  
2216 County Road 28  
Port Hope ON L1A 3V8  
Linda Laliberte  
llaliberte@grca.on.ca   

Grand River CA  
Box 729  
400 Clyde Road  
Cambridge ON N1R 5W6  
Samantha Lawson  
slawson@grandriver.ca   

Grey Sauble CA  
R.R. #4  
237897 Inglis Falls Road  
Owen Sound ON N4K 5N6  
Tim Lanthier  
t.lanthier@greysauble.on.ca   

Halton Region CA  
2596 Britannia Road West  
Burlington ON L7P 0G3  
Hassaan Basit  
hbasit@hrca.on.ca

Hamilton Region CA  
P.O. Box 81067  
838 Mineral Springs Road  
Ancaster ON L9G 4X1  
Lisa Burnside  
lisa.burnside@conservationhamilton.ca 

Kawartha Region CA  
277 Kenrei (Park) Road  
Lindsay ON K9V 4R1  
Mark Majchrowski  
mmajchrowski@kawarthaconservation.com   

Kettle Creek CA  
R.R. #8  
44015 Ferguson Line  
St. Thomas ON N5P 3T3  
Elizabeth VanHooren  
elizabeth@kettlecreekconservation.on.ca  
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Lake Simcoe Region CA  
Box 282  
120 Bayview Parkway  
Newmarket ON L3Y 3W3  
Rob Baldwin  
r.baldwin@lsrca.on.ca   

Lakehead Region CA  
Box 10427  
130 Conservation Road  
Thunder Bay ON P7B 6T8  
Tammy Cook  
tammy@lakeheadca.com   

Long Point Region CA  
4 Elm Street  
Tillsonburg ON N4G 0C4  
Judy Maxwell  
jmaxwell@lprca.on.ca   

Lower Thames Valley CA  
100 Thames Street  
Chatham ON N7L 2Y8  
Mark Peacock  
mark.peacock@ltvca.ca   

Lower Trent Region CA  
R.R. #1  
714 Murray Street  
Trenton ON K8V 5P4  
Rhonda Bateman  
rhonda.bateman@ltc.on.ca   

Maitland Valley CA  
Box 127  
1093 Marietta Street  
Wroxeter ON N0G 2X0  
Phil Beard  
pbeard@mvca.on.ca   

Mattagami Region CA  
100 Lakeshore Road  
Timmins ON P4N 8R5  
David Vallier  
david.vallier@timmins.ca   

Mississippi Valley CA  
10970 Highway 7  
Carleton Place ON K7C 3P1  
Sally McIntyre  
smcintyre@mvc.on.ca   
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Niagara Peninsula CA  
250 Thorold Road West, 3rd Floor  
Welland ON L3C 3W2  
Chandra Sharma  
csharma@npca.ca

Nickel District CA  
199 Larch St  
Suite 401  
Sudbury ON P3E 5P9  
Carl Jorgensen  
carl.jorgensen@conservationsudbury.ca   

North Bay-Mattawa CA  
15 Janey Avenue  
North Bay ON P1C 1N1  
Chitra Gowda  
chitra.gowda@nbmca.ca   

Nottawasaga Valley CA  
8195 Line 8  
Utopia ON L0M 1T0  
Doug Hevenor  
dhevenor@nvca.on.ca   

Otonabee Region CA  
250 Milroy Drive  
Peterborough ON K9H 7M9  
Janette Loveys Smith  
jsmith@otonabeeconservation.com   

Quinte CA  
R.R. #2  
2061 Old Highway #2  
Belleville ON K8N 4Z2  
Brad McNevin  
bmcnevin@quinteconservation.ca   

Raisin Region CA  
PO Box 429  
18045 County Road 2  
Cornwall ON K6H 5T2  
Richard Pilon  
richard.pilon@rrca.on.ca   

Rideau Valley CA  
Box 599  
3889 Rideau Valley Dr.  
Manotick ON K4M 1A5  
Sommer Casgrain-Robertson  
sommer.casgrain-robertson@rvca.ca   
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Saugeen Valley CA  
R.R. #1  
1078 Bruce Road #12, Box #150  
Formosa ON N0G 1W0  
Jennifer Stephens  
j.stephens@svca.on.ca  

Sault Ste. Marie Region CA  
1100 Fifth Line East  
Sault Ste. Marie ON P6A 6J8  
Corrina Barrett  
cbarrett@ssmrca.ca   

South Nation River CA  
38 Victoria Street  
P.O. Box 29  
Finch ON K0C 1K0  
Carl Bickerdike  
cbickerdike@nation.on.ca   

St. Clair Region CA  
205 Mill Pond Crescent  
Strathroy ON N7G 3P9  
Ken Phillips  
kphillips@scrca.on.ca   

Toronto and Region CA  
101 Exchange Avenue  
Vaughan ON L4K 5R6  
John MacKenzie  
john.mackenzie@trca.ca  

Upper Thames River CA  
1424 Clarke Road  
London ON N5V 5B9  
Tracey Annett  
annettt@thamesriver.on.ca 


